
ALLEGHENY COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 

 

MINUTES 

 

March 4, 2015  

 

Present:  Lee Harrison, MD, Chair 

  Karen Hacker, MD, Secretary 

  Edith Shapira, MD 

  Kotayya Kondaveeti, MD 

  Ellen Stewart, MD 

  Anthony Ferraro (via telephone) 

  Caroline Mitchell 

 

Absent:  William Youngblood, Vice Chair 

  Donald Burke, MD 

  Joylette Portlock, PhD 

 

1.  Call to Order 

  The meeting was held at the Clack Health Center, 39
th

 and Penn Avenue, Pittsburgh. 

Dr. Harrison called the meeting to order. Dr. Harrison confirmed that Mr. Ferraro was successfully 

connected to the meeting via telephone.  

 

2. Introduction of Caroline Mitchell 

  Dr. Harrison introduced the Board’s newest member, Caroline Mitchell.  Ms. Mitchell 

 introduced herself and stated that she graduated from Pitt with a chemical engineering degree 

 and then earned a law degree. She also taught at Carnegie-Mellon University. She stated that she 

 was grateful to be on the Board and looks forward to serving with everyone. 

 

3. Approval of Minutes from January 7, 2015 

Dr. Harrison asked for a motion to approve the minutes. 

 

Action: Dr. Kondaveeti moved to approve the minutes, Dr. Stewart seconded the   

 motion. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

4.  Public Comments on Agenda Items 

  A. Ted Popovich – Community Health Improvement Plan 

  Mr. Popovich thanked the Board for having him. He encouraged the Board to incorporate 

  planning ideas for Shenango into the planning process for the Community Health  

  Improvement Plan. He advocated ideas such as 100% compliance with all regulations,  



  cut backs on bad air days, increasing fines commiserate with public health impacts, and  

  increase in night and weekend monitoring.  

  Dr. Harrison thanked Mr. Popovich for his comments. 

 

  B. Kathleen Krebs – Community Health Improvement Plan 

  Ms. Krebs, of Brighton Heights, recalled immense suffering of cardiac patients that were  

  entrusted to her care. Ms. Krebs stated that she had signs of pulmonary disease herself.  

  She stated that she lives less than one mile from Shenango. She stated that her   

  proximity to Shenango has contributed to her health issues. She stated that her quality  

  of life has been significantly altered and that she has grave concerns about exposing her  

  grandchildren to the air effects. She urged the Board to develop and implement a  

  strategic plan to address air pollution in the County. 

  Dr. Harrison thanked Ms. Krebs for her comments. 

 

  C. Sylvia Pearsol – Community Health Improvement Plan 

  Ms. Pearsol was not present at the meeting. 

 

  D. Jody Hanley – Community Health Improvement Plan 

  Ms. Hanley stated that temperature inversions were responsible for depositing a sewage 

  smell from the Clairton Coke Works over the East End. Ms. Hanley initially thought that  

  her home had a sewage problem, then she realized that the sewage smell came from the 

  air. Ms. Hanley acknowledged that the air quality is better than it was before, but stated  

  that better is not good. Ms. Hanley urged ACHD to campaign for lawmakers to do better  

  than existing Federal laws.  

  Dr. Harrison thanked Ms. Hanley for her comments. 

 

  E. Myron Arnowit – Community Health Improvement Plan 

  Mr. Arnowit, the Pennsylvania Director of Clean Water Action, was pleased that there  

  was an environment priority in the Plan and that air quality was a large component of  

  what was being addressed. He stated that air quality was a public health problem, not  

  one that should only be framed by legal requirements. He urged ACHD to design an air  

  quality program that focuses on improving health and improving people’s quality of life.  

  He urged that such plan should include focuses on prioritizing decreasing pollution from  

  the biggest sources, increasing enforcement, and increasing transparency. He stated that 

  Clean Water Action looks forward to working with ACHD. 

  Dr. Harrison thanked Mr. Arnowit for his comments. 

 

  F. Angelo Taranto – Community Health Improvement Plan 

  Angelo Taranto, a resident of Ross Township and a member of Allegheny County Clean  

  Air Now, stated the ACHD and the Board need to get tough on air pollution, particularly  

  on large polluters such as Clairton, Cheswick, and Shenango. Mr. Taranto stated that  

  Allegheny County needs to be a safe and healthy place to live. He stated that residents  



  living close to large polluters suffer from increased disease risk and decreased quality of  

  life. He urged the Board to ensure that the Plan decreases pollution. 

  Dr. Harrison thanked Mr. Taranto for his comments. 

 

5. Old Business 

 A. Update on Community Health Improvement Plan planning 

  Dr. Hacker stated that ACHD is completing its Community Health Assessment report, 

 which should be available in the next month. She stated that it is an excellent resource, with 

 baseline data detailed by County Council District. 

 

  She stated that the five priorities for the Community Health Improvement Plan have 

 been identified as: access to health care, chronic disease health risk behaviors, environment, 

 maternal and child health, and mental health/substance abuse. She also stated that health  

 equity was a cross-cutting issue across all five priorities. Health equity includes health disparities 

 and social determinants of health.  

 

  Dr. Hacker stated that the CHA and the CHIP were not just the responsibility of ACHD, 

 but are the responsibilities of communities and community organizations in Allegheny County. 

 An advisory coalition comprised of seventy members has been assisting ACHD. Dr. Hacker 

 expects the community to own the CHIP. She stated that she expects the CHIP to be completed 

 in the spring and brought to the Board for final acceptance.  

   

 B. Live Well Update 

  Dr. Hacker reported that there was a recent Live Well meeting with the Board 

 subcommittee. Live Well has met with several new communities and school districts and is 

 working on branding and messaging. Mr. Ferraro and Dr. Stewart stated that Live Well is moving 

 in the right direction.  

 

 C. Accreditation Update 

  Dr. Hacker stated that ACHD submitted its intent to apply for accreditation in January 

 and is on track for final submission for accreditation by the end of the year. 

 

6. New Business 

A. Food Program Draft Report 

 Jim Thompson stated that the Board had been receiving reports from all of the 

 Environmental Health Programs.  He stated that  a draft report about each program, as well as a 

 presentation about the role of each program, will be given to the Board at each meeting. 

  

  Donna Scharding, Program Chief, provided the Board with an overview of the Food 

 Safety Program. The program’s mission is to ensure safe food for the community. The program 

 conducts ten thousand field inspections of eight thousand facilities in Allegheny County per year. 

 Enforcement actions that the program can take for non-compliance includes placing consumer 



 alert placards, closing a facility, issuing criminal complaints, and issuing civil penalties. Ms. 

 Scharding reported that challenges facing the program include staff turnover, repeat violators, 

 and timely staff training and standardization. Initiatives the program is working on include 

 enhanced enforcement, staff training, recentralization of plan reviews, and website enrichment.  

 

  Mr. Thompson stated that the program has a twenty percent violation rate, and that is 

 unacceptable.  This means that twenty percent of restaurants have one or more high risk 

 violation. Mr. Thompson stated that this must be deterred. He stated that the grading system, 

 still in County Council, was one such deterrent. The program was also reviewing its 

 penalties. Penalties may be accelerated based on the number of violations.  

 

  Dr. Harrison asked why turnover was a problem with inspectors. Ms. Scharding replied 

 that problems included money and opportunity. Mr. Thompson stated that career ladders within 

 the program were being looked into. 

 

  Mr. Thompson stated that the program will soon be submitting a new fee schedule to 

 the Board for approval. 

 

  Ms. Scharding presented the Board with copies of the draft enforcement report. Doctors 

 Harrison, Kondaveeti, and Shapira expressed their support for the format of the draft 

 enforcement report. 

 

  Dr. Harrison thanked Mr. Thompson and Ms. Scharding for their presentation. 

 

 At this time, Mr. Ferraro’s  telephone connection was lost. Dr. Harrison confirmed that a quorum 

 was still present. 

 

 B. Air Quality 

  1. Request for Final Approval of Regulation Change: 

  §2101.07.c - Air Pollution Control Advisory Committee 

   Jayme Graham stated that changes to the regulation include changing the  

  appointment term from one year to three, shrinking the group’s membership from  

  nineteen to between nine and fifteen, and defining the membership of the group to  

  include a balance of representatives of industry, citizens, academia, and small   

  businesses.  The County Executive will nominate members to serve on the Committee,  

  and County Council will confirm their nominations. 

 

   Action: Dr. Shapira moved to grant final approval to the requested regulation  

  change regarding the Air Pollution Control Advisory Committee. Dr. Stewart  

  seconded the motion. 

   Motion passed unanimously. 

 



  2. Clean Air Fund Request:  

  Support for Carnegie Science Center Future Cities Competition 

   Ms. Graham presented the Board with a request for a renewal of support from 

 the Clean Air Fund for the Carnegie Science Center Future Cities Competition. The 

 request for $2,000 for each year for two years was a slight increase from the previous 

 amount of $1,500. This competition helps encourage high school students to pursue 

 engineering careers. Dr. Harrison asked what the expenditure would be used for. Ms. 

 Graham stated that it was for operation support and that ACHD was a minor contributor. 

 

   Action: Dr. Kondaveeti moved to authorize funding from the Clean Air Fund to  

   Support the Carnegie Science Center Future Cities Competition for  

   $2,000 per year for 2015 and 2016. Dr. Shapira seconded the motion. 

   Motion passed unanimously. 

 

  3. New Air Projects at Shenango 

   Mr. Thompson assured the Board that Shenango is a priority for ACHD. He said 

 that the Air Quality program has spent approximately one-fifth of its time over the past 

 six months on Shenango. He stated that for many years, ACHD has operated a monitor in 

 Avalon, approximately 700 yards from Shenango. This station monitors PM2.5 and had 

 one of the highest monitor readings initially, but is now within EPA standards after 

 enforcement action was taken. 

 

  At this time, Mr. Ferraro re-established his telephone connection to the meeting. 

 

   Mr. Thompson also stated that hydrogen sulfide was monitored at the Avalon  

 site. Hydrogen sulfide is a marker of coke oven gas and is the usual cause of smell 

 complaints. Enforcement action was taken, and great progress has been made. Spikes do 

 occur though, which are magnified by the weather conditions in the river valley. 

 

   He also informed the Board that a camera had been purchased to monitor 

 Shenango. He reported that ACHD is currently working with Carnegie-Mellon university 

 on software for the camera and that it should be working in a few weeks. The ACHD 

 website will include a link to the camera. The camera has night-vision capability. The 

 camera will take a picture every minute and the loop will play like a video.  

 

   Dr. Harrison asked how the visual data from the camera will be used. Mr. 

 Thompson stated that the data can be linked to the timeframe of complaints and can 

 provide additional credible evidence to lead to enforcement actions. 

 

   Doctors Hacker, Harrison, and Shapira thanked Mr. Thompson for this 

 informative presentation. 

   



 

C. Tuberculosis Update 

  Dr. Hacker informed the Board that an active case was identified in a student at South  

 Hills 6-8 Middle School. ACHD screened 640 people, including students, teachers, and bus 

 drivers. She reported that ACHD had a very collaborative effort with Pittsburgh Public Schools, 

 including holding a meeting with parents. Dr. Hacker thanked Kwesi Willacy and Sharon Silvestri 

 for their assistance in this extensive effort. 

 

  Dr. Shapira stated that she received a phone call from a Pittsburgh School Board 

 member, who told her that Dr. Hacker and her team exceeded their wildest expectations. Dr. 

 Harrison concurred that this issue was very well handled.  

 

 D. Measles and Vaccination Rates 

  Dr. Hacker reported that ACHD has not had any cases of measles. She reported that 91% 

 of Allegheny County’s kindergartners had complete MMR vaccinations and that this rate rises to 

 98% in seventh grade. Dr. Harrison was pleased that the vaccination rates are high. Dr. Hacker 

 gave kudos to ACHD’s vaccination team, the Immunization Coalition, and Sharon Silvestri. 

 

6. Director’s Report 

  Dr. Hacker had nothing additional to report. 

 

7. Announcements 

  Dr. Hacker read in an announcement from Pat Waag: “The WIC Program will be 

 celebrating National Nutrition Month in March.  The WIC Program is the premiere preventative 

 public health nutrition program in the country for at risk Women, Infants, and Children.” 

 

8. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items 

  A. Jameka Hodnett – Cheswick Plant 

  Jameka Hodnett, an organizer for the Sierra Club, stated that she was speaking on behalf 

  of residents of Cheswick. Ms. Hodnett stated that residents are having problems with  

  sulfur dioxide emissions from the Cheswick power plant. She stated that it is the largest  

  source of sulfur dioxide in Allegheny County and that the plant is failing to use its  

  equipment properly. She urged ACHD to ensure that the plant uses its equipment  

  properly and that stricter standards be applied for the plant’s new Title V permit. 

  Dr. Harrison thanked Ms. Hodnett for her comments. 

 

  B. Terri Supowitz – Fracking/Air Quality 

  Terri Supowitz, of Wilkinsburg, questioned why fracking was not an issue that ACHD was  

  examining on its indicator survey. She stated that Allegheny County is one of the ten  

  worst counties in the country for air quality, and that fracking will make this worse. She  

  questioned what ACHD will do to protect, preserve, and promote public health in terms  

  of air pollution effects from fracking. 



   

9. Adjournment 

Mr. Ferraro thanked the Board for being able to call in via telephone, thanked Jim 

 Thompson and Donna Scharding for their report, and thanked Todd Bogdanovich. 

 

Dr. Kondaveeti moved to adjourn the meeting, and Dr. Shapira seconded the motion. 


